
AMENDED AGENDA 
(Amended Items in Bold) 

KANSAS RACING AND GAMING COMMISSION 
10:00 am, Friday, April 9, 2010 

 

04.09.10  Agenda - Page 1 

AUDITORIUM A 
Dwight D. Eisenhower State Office Building 

700 SW Harrison, Suite 450 
Topeka, Kansas 

 

A. CALL TO ORDER 

B. APPROVAL OF THE AGENDA 

C. APPROVAL OF MINUTES 
1. 

D. CONSENT AGENDA 

Minutes of March 12, 2010 

Items listed on the consent agenda are a variety of different contracts and items which are routine in nature.  If 
requested by a Commissioner, an item on the consent agenda may be removed from the Consent Agenda and 
placed under Commission Items for further discussion and consideration. 

1. Electronic Gaming Machines and Electronic Lottery Facility Games 
a. 
b. 

Staff Memo 

E. KANSAS LOTTERY COMMISSION REPORT 

EGM Approvals 

F. LOTTERY GAMING FACILITY REPORTS/ITEMS 

1. Boot Hill Casino and Resort 
a. 

2. Hollywood Casino at Kansas Speedway 

March 2010 Gaming Revenue Report 

G. COMMISSION ITEMS 
1. Semi-annual activity report of inspections and investigations of bingo operations 

Commission Action: Discussion 
Staff Presentation: Patrick Martin, Assistant Attorney General 
  Patsy Congrove, Department of Revenue 
a. 

2. KHA Reimbursement from Kansas Bred Program 

ABC Activity Report 

Commission Action Commission review and discussion 
Staff Presentation: Charles LaBoy, Deputy Director for Audit and Electronic Security 
Staff Recommendation: Staff recommends approval 
a. 
b. 

Staff Memo 

c. 
KHA Letter 
Kansas Bred Registry Income and Cash Flow 



 

04.09.10  Agenda - Page 2 

3. Boot Hill Casino and Resort Internal Control Amendments & Related Financial Information 
Commission Action: Discussion, consideration and possible action 
Staff Presentation: Charles LaBoy, Deputy Director for Audit and Electronic Security 
Staff Recommendation: Staff recommendations listed 
a. 

4. KRGC Compliance Audit of Anthony Downs for 2009 

Amended Staff Memo 

Commission Action: Discussion, consideration and possible action 
Staff Presentation: Charles LaBoy, Deputy Director for Audit and Electronic Security 
Staff Recommendation: No recommendation 
a. 
b. 

Staff Memo 

5. Annual audited financial statements of Wichita Greyhound Charities, Inc. for the year ended 
December 31, 2009 

Anthony Audit Response 

Commission Action: Discussion, consideration and possible action 
Staff Presentation: David Schultz, KRGC Chief Audit Officer 
Staff Recommendation: Staff recommends approval 
a. 
b. 

Staff Memo 

c. 
Wichita Greyhound Charities 2009 Audited Financial Statement 

6. Annual audited consolidated financial statements of Wichita Greyhound Park, Inc. and 
subsidiary for the year ended December 31, 2009 

Wichita Greyhound Charities 2009 Required Communication Letter 

Commission Action: Discussion, consideration and possible action 
Staff Presentation: David Schultz, KRGC Chief Audit Officer 
Staff Recommendation: Staff recommends approval 
a. 
b. 

Staff Memo 

c. 
Wichita Greyhound Park 2009 Audited Financial Statement 

7. Extension request on the annual audited financial statements of The Racing Association of 
Kansas East for the year ended December 31, 2009. 

Wichita Greyhound Park 2009 Required Communication Letter 

Commission Action: Discussion, consideration and possible action 
Staff Presentation: Charles LaBoy, Deputy Director for Audit and Electronic Security 
Staff Recommendation: No recommendation 
a. 
b. 

Staff Memo 

8. Extension request on the annual audited financial statements of Kansas Racing, LLC for the 
year ended December 31, 2009 

2009 Audit Extension Request 

Commission Action: Discussion, consideration and possible action 
Staff Presentation: Charles LaBoy, Deputy Director for Audit and Electronic Security 
Staff Recommendation: No recommendation 
a. Staff Memo 



 

04.09.10  Agenda - Page 3 

b. 
9. Presentation of Annual Report for the year 2009 

2009 Audit Extension Request 

Commission Action: Discussion, consideration and possible action 
Staff Presentation: Stephen Martino, Executive Director 
Staff Recommendation: Staff Recommends approval 
a. 
b. 

Staff Memo 

H. PUBLIC COMMENTS 

2009 Annual Report 

I. STAFF REPORTS 

1. Executive Director 

2. Director of Communications/Responsible Gambling 

3. Deputy Director of Administration 
a. 

J. EXECUTIVE SESSIONS 

Commission Calendar 

1. Attorney-client communication 

2. Background reports 

K. OTHER BUSINESS/FURTHER COMMISSION ACTION 

1. Discussion, consideration and possible action on licenses 
a. Level I Gaming Licenses 

i. Fleming, Larry 
ii. Gardiner, Robert 

b. Level II Gaming Licenses 
i. Bennett, Kimberly M. 

ii. Brock, Kendra 
iii. Cardenas, Jesus 
iv. Dome, Toni L. 
v. Eichman, Kevin D. 

vi. Kerns, Scott W. 
vii. Lang, Jaime D. 

viii. Medina, Arianne E. 
ix. Myers, Susan K. 
x. O’Brien, Erin 

xi. Paul, Michelet 
xii. Roberts, Dawn R. 

xiii. Roberts, Tyler J. 
xiv. Sauer, Allen D. 



 

04.09.10  Agenda - Page 4 

xv. Smith, Marilyn A. 
xvi. Tapia, Juan M. 

xvii. Weber, Garrett D. 
c. Level III Gaming Licenses 

i. Bustillos, Kristal R. 
ii. Conde, Stephanie 

iii. Garcia, Diaz C. 
iv. Klassen, Elizabeth 
v. Law (Molinar), Jennie D. 

vi. Ochoa, Thalia J. 

L. ADJOURNMENT 



KANSAS RACING AND GAMING COMMISSION 
 

MINUTES – MARCH 12, 2010 
 
 
CALL TO ORDER: 
(A.) 

 Chair Sader called the March 12, 2010, meeting to order at 10:04 am 
at 700 SW Harrison, Auditorium A, Suite 450, Topeka, Kansas.  
Commissioners Sader, Falstad, and Schwan were present at the 
meeting.  Commissioner McKechnie participated by phone.  
Commissioner Braun was absent.  Others present included Executive 
Director Stephen Martino; Assistant Attorney General Patrick 
Martin; Deputy Director of Audit/Electronic Security Charles LaBoy; 
Deputy Director of Security Don Brownlee; Deputy Director of 
Administration Don Cawby; Director of Communications/ 
Responsible Gaming Mike Deines;  Recording Secretary Linda 
Pendarvis and other staff.   

   
MOTION, APPROVE 
AGENDA: 
(B.) 

 Commissioner Falstad (Schwan) moved to approve the agenda as 
presented.  Motion passed unanimously. 
 
(Note:  Representatives of the Hollywood Casino [F.1.b.] will speak 
prior to representatives of the Boot Hill Casino and Resort [F.1.a.], 
which represents a change in order but no change in the agenda 
contents.) 

   
MOTION, APPROVE 
FEBRUARY 12, 2010, 
MEETING MINUTES: 
(C.) 

 Commissioner Falstad (McKechnie) moved to approve the minutes 
of the February 12, 2010, commission meeting as submitted.  Motion 
passed unanimously. 

   
MOTION, APPROVE 
CONSENT AGENDA: 
(D.) 

 Commissioner Schwan (Falstad) moved to approve the consent 
agenda with updates as indicated by Mr. LaBoy to include approval 
of the 23 listed electronic gaming machine hardware components and 
electronic lottery facility games and the revocation of the two listed 
electronic gaming machine software components that will be 
replaced within 90 days: 

1. Electronic Gaming Machines and Electronic Lottery Facility 
Games (spreadsheet of machines and games attached) 

Motion passed unanimously. 
   
KANSAS LOTTERY 
COMMISSION REPORT: 
(E.) 

 The commission heard Keith Kocher, director of gaming facilities for 
the Kansas Lottery, report on the current status of casinos: 

 The Lottery has been working the past week with The Boot 
Hill Casino and Resort on getting their bar-top video poker 
machines in.   

 The format for posting revenue for The Boot Hill Casino has 
changed on the Lottery’s website.  It is now a monthly 
amount with cumulative totals. 

 Through the end of February 2010, Boot Hill Casino has 

C.1



March 12, 2010 
Page 2 

realized $2.63 million in net revenues, which is exactly $40 
million per year and in line with projections. 

 South Central zone:  The Kansas Lottery Gaming Facility 
Review Board met two weeks ago to consider the amended 
contract for the Chisholm Creek Casino and Resort applicant.  
The board is awaiting information from its consultants and 
will be scheduling another meeting. 

 Northeast zone:  The Hollywood Casino and Lottery officials 
have met, and plans are moving forward. 

 Southeast zone:  One potential applicant continues to call, but 
it is unknown whether a proposal will be in hand by April 16.  
If no applications are filed, it is anticipated than an additional 
extension will be granted. 

   
LOTTERY GAMING 
FACILITY 
REPORTS/ITEMS: 
(F.1.b.) 

 The commission heard a report from Jeff Boerger, president of 
Kansas Speedway, a partner in the Hollywood Casino at Kansas 
Speedway:   

 Mr. Boerger introduced Carl Yaeger with the design group 
Berger Devine Yaeger, the lead architect on the project.  Mr. 
Yaeger distributed a site plan and floor plan of the casino.  
The design team consists of Marnell Architects, Las Vegas, 
which will be in charge of the exterior construction; Genesis, 
Los Angeles, will be handling the interior architecture and 
design; and Berger Devine Yaeger, Overland Park, KS, is the 
architect of record on the project.  Turner Construction will 
serve as the construction manager. 

 Mr. Boerger also introduced Marty Naumann, V.P. of 
Operations at the Hollywood Casino at Kansas Speedway, 
and Latoria Chinn, who is in charge of compliance pertaining 
to minority and women owned business for the project. 

 The ceremonial groundbreaking for the Hollywood Casino is 
planned for Friday, April 30, at 11 am.  That is a race 
weekend at Kansas Speedway.  Further information will be 
forthcoming. 

   
LOTTERY GAMING 
FACILITY 
REPORTS/ITEMS: 
(F.1.a.) 

 The commission heard a report from Clark Stewart, president of 
Butler National Service Corp. d/b/a Boot Hill Casino and Resort:   

 Boot Hill Casino and Resort is currently on target with the 
original planned gaming revenue. 

 Fifteen video poker games are currently in the bar and have 
been popular with patrons.  Twenty more are expected to be 
online within the next 30 days or so. 

   
DISCUSSION, BOOT HILL 
CASINO AND RESORT 
INTERNAL CONTROL 
WAIVERS/AMENDMENTS: 
(G.1.) 

 The commission heard Mr. LaBoy present two waivers/amendments 
(BH60 and BH61) submitted by the Boot Hill Casino and Resort 
relating to its internal control plan.  Staff submitted two waivers 
(KRGC1 and KRGC2) dealing with shipping notices for electronic 

C.1



March 12, 2010 
Page 3 

gaming devices and table games.  The December 2009 and January 
2010 financial statements were also presented.  Due to the 
confidential nature of the information, he recommended that it be 
discussed in executive session.   

   
MOTION, APPROVE 
STAFF SUBMITTED 
WAIVERS: 
(G.1.) 

 Commissioner Falstad (Schwan) moved to approve waivers KRGC1 
[K.A.R. 112-107-5(a)] and KRGC2 [K.A.R. 112-108-55(a)].  Motion 
passed unanimously. 

   
MOTION, EXECUTIVE 
SESSION: 
(G.1.) 

 Commissioner Schwan (Falstad) moved that the commission recess 
into executive session for a period of 15 minutes, from 10:55 to 
11:10 am, for the purpose of receiving confidential data to protect the 
financial affairs, security, and other trade secrets of the certified 
manager.  Included in the executive session were the commission, 
Mr. Martino, Mr. Martin, Mr. LaBoy, and other KRGC staff.  Motion 
passed unanimously. 

   
RECONVENE:  The commission meeting reconvened at 11:10 am with all members 

present as previously noted. 
   
MOTION, APPROVAL OF 
BOOT HILL CASINO AND 
RESORT INTERNAL 
CONTROL WAIVERS/ 
AMENDMENTS: 
(G.1.) 

 Commissioner Falstad (Schwan) moved to approve the requests to 
the Boot Hill Casino internal control plan as follows:   

 Approve waiver amendment application BH61 
 Deny waiver amendment application BH60 

Motion passed unanimously. 
   
DISCUSSION, LOTTERY 
TABLE GAME – THREE 
CARD POKER: 
(G.2)  

 The commission heard Mr. LaBoy discuss the suggested rules for 
Three Card Poker in accordance with K.A.R. 112-108-4(a)’s 
requirement that the commission approve any table game rules before 
their use at a lottery gaming facility.  The rules are a standard set 
from Shuffle Master and have been formatted and approved as 
temporary regulations by the Kansas Lottery Commission.  In 
addition, they have been analyzed by KRGC’s independent testing 
laboratory. 

   
MOTION, APPROVAL OF 
LOTTERY TABLE GAME – 
THREE CARD POKER: 
(G.2)  

 Commissioner Falstad (Schwan) moved to approve the Three Card 
Poker rules as stated in K.A.R. 111-305.  Motion passed 
unanimously. 

   
DISCUSSION, 
COMPLIANCE AUDIT OF 
ANTHONY DOWNS FOR 
2009: 
(G.3.) 

 The commission heard David Schultz, Chief Audit Officer, discuss 
the Anthony Downs 2009 compliance audit conducted on January 21, 
2010, and the financial report included therein.  Staff does not 
believe requirements were met for Order No. One that states that any 
profits from the horse meet should be used to pay down the debt or 
refund entry fees on a pro rata basis.  Since Anthony Downs had a 
profit of over $51,000 on the horse meet, staff believes that amount is 

C.1



March 12, 2010 
Page 4 

payable to the horsemen.  Staff at Anthony Downs was given a week 
to comment on the situation.  No comment has been received to date. 

   
MOTION, TABLE UNTIL 
APRIL 9, 2010, MEETING: 
(G.3.) 

 Commissioner Falstad (Schwan) moved to table approval of the 
Anthony Downs compliance audit until the April 9, 2010, meeting 
pending further communication with Anthony Downs.  Motion 
passed unanimously. 

   
PRESENTATION OF 
ANNUAL REPORTS FOR 
2007 AND 2008: 
(G.4.) 

 The commission heard Mr. Martino discuss the KRGC Annual 
Reports for the years 2007 and 2008.   It is anticipated that the 2009 
Annual Report will appear on the April 9 commission agenda.  
Future annual reports will be posted on the KRGC website rather 
than distributed in paper form. 

   
MOTION, APPROVAL OF 
ANNUAL REPORTS FOR 
2007 AND 2008: 
(G.4.) 

 Commissioner Schwan (Falstad) moved to approve the 2007 and 
2008 Annual Reports as submitted.  Motion passed unanimously. 

   
DISCUSSION, SEMI-
ANNUAL ACTIVITY 
REPORT OF BINGO 
OPERATIONS: 
(G.5.) 

 The commission heard Mr. Martino present the semi-annual activity 
report of inspections and investigations of bingo operations submitted 
by the director of Alcoholic Beverage Control, for the last six months 
of calendar year 2009.  The commission expressed dissatisfaction 
with the substance of the report and questioned whether it is 
necessary that the report come before the commission.  The executive 
director will express to the Department of Revenue that the 
commission desires to either be released from the obligation to 
receive the report or to receive a report with more substantive 
information than it customarily contains. 

   
MOTION, 
ACKNOWLEDGE RECEIPT 
OF SEMI-ANNUAL 
ACTIVITY REPORT OF 
BINGO OPERATIONS: 
(G.5.) 

 Commissioner Schwan (Falstad) moved to acknowledge receipt of 
the semi-annual activity report of bingo operations.  Motion passed 
unanimously. 

   
DISCUSSION, TRAVEL TO 
NORTH AMERICAN 
GAMING REGULATORS 
ASSOCIATION 
CONFERENCE: 
(G.6.) 

 The commission heard Mr. Martino discuss travel to the North 
American Gaming Regulators Association Conference.  This year’s 
NAGRA meeting is in Vancouver, Canada.  Mr. Martin and Mr. 
Brownlee have expressed a willingness to attend on behalf of KRGC.  
Commission approval is required for any travel outside the United 
States.   

   
MOTION, APPROVAL OF 
TRAVEL TO NORTH 
AMERICAN GAMING 
REGULATORS 
ASSOCIATION 
CONFERENCE: 
(G.6.) 

 Commissioner Falstad (Braun) moved to approve the request for Mr. 
Martin and Mr. Brownlee to attend the NAGRA conference in 
Vancouver, Canada.  Motion passed unanimously. 

C.1



March 12, 2010 
Page 5 
   
CALL FOR PUBLIC 
COMMENTS: 
(H.) 

 Chair Sader called for public comments.  There were none. 

   
STAFF REPORT, 
MARTINO: 
(I.1.) 

 The commission heard a staff report from Mr. Martino: 
 The Kansas Lottery Gaming Facility Review Board met by 

phone on March 3 to consider the amended Chisholm Creek 
Casino and Resort contract in Sumner county.  The review 
board has requested some consultant work and are likely to 
meet in person in early April to consider the amended 
contract.   

 The budget process is substantively finished for this year.  
Both the House and the Senate adopted the governor’s 
recommendation on the KRGC budget. 

 Staff next week will attend the GLI Regulators Roundtable. 
   
STAFF REPORT, DEINES: 
(I.2.) 

 The commission heard a staff report from Mr. Deines: 
 On March 10, the Kansas Responsible Gambling Alliance 

held a press conference to unveil new resources for problem 
gamblers in the State of Kansas – a new website and a public 
service announcement that will be airing on radio and 
television stations across the state.  All of the air time has 
been donated by the stations, and the Association of Gaming 
Equipment Manufacturers donated $10,000 to pay for the 
production costs. 

 Five individuals have now registered for the voluntary 
exclusion program. 

 During the month of February 2010, the Problem Gambling 
Helpline received 29 appropriate calls.  Most people who 
utilize the number have received information about it at the 
casino. 

 During February 2010, the website ksgamblinghelp.com 
received 261 visitors, 219 of which were unique visitors.  
Since the press conference on March 10, traffic on the site has 
tripled. 

   
STAFF REPORT, CAWBY: 
(I.3.) 

 The commission heard a staff report from Mr. Cawby: 
 All upcoming commission dates through the end of the 

calendar year are on the calendar. 
   
MOTION, EXECUTIVE 
SESSION: 
(J.1.) 

 Commissioner Schwan (Falstad) moved that the commission take a 
5-minute break followed by an executive session for 30 minutes from 
noon until 12:30 pm for the purpose of attorney-client 
communication.  Those included in the executive session were the 
commission, Mr. Martino, Mr. Martin, and Mr. LaBoy.  No action is 
to be taken in executive session, and the subjects discussed are to be 

C.1



March 12, 2010 
Page 6 

limited as previously described.  A full record of this motion is to be 
maintained as a part of the permanent record of the Kansas Racing 
and Gaming Commission.  At the conclusion of the executive 
session, the meeting is to be continued in open session.  Motion 
passed unanimously. 

   
McKECHNIE EXITS 
TELECONFERENCE 

 Commissioner McKechnie exited the teleconference at 11:55 am. 

   
RECONVENE:  The commission meeting reconvened at 12:30 pm with all members 

present as previously noted. 
   
MOTION, EXECUTIVE 
SESSION: 
(J.2.) 

 Commissioner Falstad (Schwan) moved that the commission adjourn 
into executive session for 45 minutes, from 12:35 until 1:20 pm, for 
the purpose of discussing 33 confidential background investigations 
performed by KRGC agents on various applicants.  Those included in 
the executive session were the commission, Mr. Martino, Mr. Martin, 
Mr. Brownlee, and security staff.  No action is to be taken in 
executive session, and the subjects discussed are to be limited as 
previously described.  A full record of this motion is to be maintained 
as a part of the permanent record of the Kansas Racing and Gaming 
Commission.  At the conclusion of the executive session, the meeting 
is to be continued in open session.  Motion passed unanimously. 

   
RECONVENE:  The commission meeting reconvened at 1:22 pm with all members 

present as previously noted. 
   
MOTION, EXTEND 
EXECUTIVE SESSION: 
(J.2.) 

 Commissioner Schwan (Falstad) moved to extend the previous 
executive session until 1:30 pm.  Those included in the executive 
session were the commission, Mr. Martino, Mr. Martin, Mr. 
Brownlee, and security staff.  No action is to be taken in executive 
session, and the subjects discussed are to be limited as previously 
described.  A full record of this motion is to be maintained as a part 
of the permanent record of the Kansas Racing and Gaming 
Commission.  At the conclusion of the executive session, the meeting 
is to be continued in open session.  Motion passed unanimously. 

   
RECONVENE:  The commission meeting reconvened at 1:30 pm with all members 

present as previously noted. 
   
MOTION, APPROVE 
LICENSES: 
(K.2.) 

 Commissioner Schwan (Falstad) moved to approve the following 
licenses:  

a. Level II Gaming Licenses 
i. Deborah Behee 

ii. Essie Cheatham 
iii. James Donato 

C.1



March 12, 2010 
Page 7 

iv. Guadalupe Galindo 
v. Craig Gates 

vi. Dung Lai 
vii. Sterling McPhaul 

viii. Kelcie Miller 
ix. Jeffrey Myers 
x. Gregory Nicholson 

xi. Brandon Olive 
xii. Christina Richardson 

xiii. Gina Richardson 
xiv. Jean Scali 
xv. Melissa Schulte 

xvi. Eric Randle 
xvii. Jean Saint Louis 

xviii. Bonnie Simmons 
xix. Julie Southard 
xx. Jennifer Tindall 

xxi. Samantha Torrez 
b. Level III Gaming Licenses 

i. Brittainy Kaiser 
ii. Shakari Pendleton 

iii. Jacquelyn Soltero 
iv. Craig Stewart 
v. Guadalupe Zuniga 

Motion passed unanimously. 
   
MOTION, DENY 
LICENSES: 
(J.2.) 

 Commissioner Falstad (Schwan) moved to deny the following 
licenses: 

a. Level II Gaming Licenses 
i. Brandy Clinton 

ii. Brenda Davis 
iii. Arturo Espinoza 
iv. David Ferrante 
v. Gilbert Ponce 

vi. Scott Smith 
b. Level III Gaming License 

i. Claudia Castelli 
Motion passed unanimously. 

C.1



Kansas Racing and Gaming Commission 
March 12, 2010 
Page 8 
   
ADJOURN:  Commissioner Schwan (Falstad) moved to adjourn at 1:35 pm.  

Motion passed unanimously. 
   
   
SUBMITTED BY:   
   
   

   
William Falstad   
Secretary   
   
   
APPROVED BY:   
   
   

   
Carol H. Sader   
Chair   
 

C.1



Kansas Racing and Gaming Commission 
 

STAFF AGENDA MEMORANDUM 
 

 
DATE OF MEETING: April 9, 2010 
 
AGENDA ITEM: Approval of Electronic Gaming Machines and Electronic 

Lottery Facility Games 
 
PRESENTER:  Charles LaBoy, Deputy Director for Audit and Electronic Security 
     
ISSUE SUMMARY:  Listed in the consent agenda are 45 electronic gaming machine hardware 
components and electronic Lottery facility games that have been tested by Gaming Laboratories 
International and determined to be in accordance with our technical specifications as outlined in 
K.A.R. 112-110-1 (a).  K.S.A. 74-8750 requires KRGC approval of all electronic gaming 
machines and lottery facility games.   

Also included are 7 electronic gaming machine software components that staff is recommending 
revocation.  These items have not been installed on any electronic gaming devices in our 
jurisdiction and therefore do not require a replacement deadline. 

 
COMMISSION ACTION REQUIRED/REQUESTED:  Commission review, discussion and 
approval. 

 
STAFF RECOMMENDATIONS:  Staff recommends approval of the 45 listed electronic 
gaming machine hardware components and electronic Lottery facility games and revocation of 
the 7 listed electronic gaming machine software components. 

 

 

 

D.1.a



 

 

 
Approved Software   3.31.2010 
     

Manufacturer File Number ID Number Version Game Name 

SHUFFLE MASTER 
PA-73-SHU-02-

02 HARDWARE 
DECKMATE 
SHUFFLER DECK MATE 

SHUFFLE MASTER 
PA-73-SHU-02-

02 HARDWARE 
DECKMATE 
SHUFFLER BLACKJACK 

SHUFFLE MASTER 
MO-122-SHU-07-

01 DECK MATE V1.11 SOFTWARE DECK MATE 

WMS 
MO-73-WMS-10-

09 SSSG-000-1650 1650/H13.12 OPERATING SYSTEM 

WESTERN MONEY 
MO-72-WEM-10-

01 FLS-US20-371012 371012 N/A 

IGT MO-22-IGT-10-41 
M6048F 2.15 198 

2.03 2.15/2.03 N/A 

ARISTOCRAT PA-22-ARI-08-03 MACHINE N/A N/A 

ARISTOCRAT 
MO-22-ARI-08-

160 HARDWARE P/N 07-41439 N/A 

ARISTOCRAT PA-22-ARI-08-03 HARDWARE P/N 01-70046 N/A 

ARISTOCRAT PA-22-ARI-08-03 HARDWARE P/N 07-41490 N/A 

ARISTOCRAT PA-22-ARI-08-03 HARDWARE P/N 07-10262 N/A 

ARISTOCRAT PA-22-ARI-08-03 HARDWARE P/N 07-41438 N/A 

ARISTOCRAT PA-22-ARI-08-03 HARDWARE P/N 07-10269 N/A 

ARISTOCRAT MO-22-ARI-09-05 1.00-60421 RFX GEN7 5 KOI 

ARISTOCRAT MO-22-ARI-09-11 1.00-60445 RFX GEN7 5 DRAGONS DYNASTY 

ARISTOCRAT MO-22-ARI-09-55 HARDWARE 01-70049 N/A 

ARISTOCRAT MO-22-ARI-09-55 HARDWARE 07-41466 N/A 

ARISTOCRAT MO-22-ARI-09-59 HARDWARE 04-15086 A N/A 

ARISTOCRAT MO-22-ARI-09-72 HARDWARE 579849 N/A 

ARISTOCRAT MO-73-ARI-09-28 1.01-60601 RFX GEN7 Skin Deep Cherries 

ARISTOCRAT MO-22-ARI-09-76 1.02-60388 RFX GEN7 Big Ride 

ARISTOCRAT MO-73-ARI-09-44 1.02-60375 GEN7 
Jungle Joe Searching High 
and Low Beat the Bandits 

ARISTOCRAT MO-73-ARI-09-53 1.00-60602 RFX GEN7 Same Way Sevens 

ARISTOCRAT MO-73-ARI-09-58 1.02-60600 RFX GEN7 Hillbillions 

ARISTOCRAT MO-73-ARI-09-68 1.00-60603 RFX GEN7 Pow-tastic Sevens 

ARISTOCRAT MO-22-ARI-09-94 1.01-60700 GEN7 
Fortune Princess Beat the 

Bandits 

ARISTOCRAT MO-73-ARI-09-83 1.00-60677 GEN7 King Cobra 

ARISTOCRAT MO-22-ARI-10-03 
Linux Operating 

System 3.03.0 N/A 

ARISTOCRAT MO-22-ARI-10-06 SET CHIP 7.00.22 N/A 

ARISTOCRAT MO-22-ARI-10-11 2.57.0-1.56.0 GEN7 N/A 

ARISTOCRAT MO-73-ARI-10-12 1.00-60605 RFX GEN7 Oaks Day Kentucky Derby 

ARISTOCRAT MO-73-ARI-10-13 1.00-60606 RFX GEN7 
Run for the Roses Kentucky 

Derby 

ARISTOCRAT MO-73-ARI-10-14 HARDWARE 593058 Kentucky Derby 

ARISTOCRAT MO-73-ARI-10-14 HARDWARE 590180 Kentucky Derby 

ARISTOCRAT MO-22-ARI-10-12 Firmware VF1.1.0a N/A 

ARISTOCRAT MO-22-ARI-10-12 Operation System VOS5.12600.0-1 N/A 

D.1.b (1 of 2)



 

ARISTOCRAT MO-22-ARI-10-12 Graphic Sequence VGS1.1.0b N/A 

ARISTOCRAT MO-22-ARI-10-12 Vertex 1.1.0.3 N/A 

WMS 
MO-73-WMS-10-

10 DB09-000-1000 1000/H13-10 Tiger's Realm 

WESTERN MONEY 
Y-166-WEM-10-

01 PXC.exe 4.0.11.0 N/A 

WESTERN MONEY 
SY-166-WEM-10-

01 CXC.exe 12.0.12.0 N/A 

IGT MO-22-IGT-10-44 
DIAGNOSTIC-014-

04 57509390 AVP 

KONAMI GAMING INC. 
MO-22-KON-09-

18 HARDWARE 995106 N/A 

KONAMI GAMING INC. 
MO-22-KON-09-

18 HARDWARE 995107 N/A 

KONAMI GAMING INC. 
MO-22-KON-10-

01 HARDWARE K-0424(A) N/A 

     

     

     

Revoked 
Software         

KONAMI GAMING INC. 
MO-07-KON-08-

75 PROV101G12 GAME PROGRAM PIRATE ROSE 

KONAMI GAMING INC. 
MO-07-KON-08-

75 PROV101G12 GAME PROGRAM PIRATE ROSE 

KONAMI GAMING INC. 
MO-07-KON-08-

75 PROV101G12-CF SOUND/GRAPHICS PIRATE ROSE 

KONAMI GAMING INC. 
MO-07-KON-09-

74 PROV102G12 GAME PROGRAM Pirate's Rose 

KONAMI GAMING INC. 
MO-07-KON-09-

74 PROV102G12 GAME PROGRAM Pirate's Rose 

KONAMI GAMING INC. 
MO-07-KON-09-

74 PROV102G12-CF SOUND/GRAPHICS Pirate's Rose 

WMS 
MO-22-WMS-09-

62 SB09-000-1020C2 1020/H9.22 Tiger's Realm 

 
 
 

D.1.b (2 of 2)



 
 

Lottery Gaming Facility Revenue* 
Boot Hill Casino and Resort 

 
 
  March  YTD  Fiscal YTD 
  2010  2010  2010 
       

Electronic gaming machines  2,727,479.24 8,124,864.25  9,830,960.51
    
Table games  523,045.00 1,371,882.00  1,655,778.50
    
Total Lottery Gaming Facility 
Revenue  3,250,524.24 9,496,746.25  11,486,739.01
    
State Share 22%  715,115.33 2,089,284.18  2,527,082.58
    
Local Share 3%  97,515.73 284,902.39  344,602.17
    
Problem Gambling Share 2%  65,010.48 189,934.93  229,734.78
    
Casino Share 73%  2,372,882.70 6,932,624.76  8,385,319.48

 
 
 
*as reported by the Kansas Lottery’s central computer system 

F.1.a



 
REPORT TO RACING AND GAMING COMMISSION 

07/01/09 to 12/31/09 
Charitable Gaming 

 
K.S.A. 79-4715 – reports to racing and gaming commission.  The director of alcoholic 
beverage control of the department of revenue shall submit to the Kansas racing and 
gaming commission semiannual activity reports concerning inspections and 
investigations of bingo operations in this state.   
 
 
Inspections; 
 
There were 71 inspections by compliance agents during this time period. 
 Educational 7 
 Routine 52 
 Follow-up 1 
 Complaints 3 
 Other  8 
The inspections resulted in 2 warnings and 12 fines.  
There were five educational workshops conducted throughout the state.   
 
Investigations:   
 
K.S.A. 79-4706 (b).  Be member or the spouse of a member of the licensed organization 
conducting the bingo game or be a member or spouse of a parent or auxiliary unit or 
society of the licensed organization.   
Received complaint bingo workers were not members of the organizations they were 
serving.   
 
K.S.A. 79-4706 (e).  Be a volunteer and not be paid or compensated in any way for their 
participation in conducting the bingo games.   
Received compliant bingo workers were recruited by the parlor and compensated. 
No violations were found. 
 
K.S.A. 79-4712a.  No person or entity shall sell or distribute any bingo faces, bingo cards 
or instant bingo tickets to any licensee unless such entity has been issued a distributor 
certificate by the administrator.  
Distributor was selling to an organization that did not have current bingo license. 
 
K.S.A. 79-4703 (f) Each registration certificate, or renewal thereof, issued under the 
provisions of subsection (e) shall expire at midnight on June 30 following its date of 
issuance.   
Organization was playing without a current bingo license. 

G.1.a



Kansas Racing and Gaming Commission 
 

STAFF AGENDA MEMORANDUM 
 
 
DATE OF MEETING: April 9, 2010 
 
AGENDA ITEM:  KHA Reimbursement from Kansas Bred Program 
 
PRESENTER:  Charles LaBoy, Deputy Director of Audit and Electronic Security 
 
ISSUE SUMMARY:  The Kansas Horsemen’s Association (KHA) is requesting approval and 
reimbursement of expenses incurred for the operation of the Kansas Bred Program for April 2009 
totaling $2,230.71 and May 2009 totaling $2,205.06.  The expenses presented for reimbursement are 
consistent with expenses incurred by the KHA in the past.  
 
The Commission is authorized by K.S.A. 74-8830 to “contract with and designate an official 
registering agency to implement the registration of horses.” Funds shall be withdrawn from the 
Kansas Bred Program account only for maintaining and administering the program and only with the 
prior approval of the Commission or the Commission's executive director. 
 
COMMISSION ACTION REQUIRED/REQUESTED:  Commission discussion, 
consideration and possible action on the request for reimbursement. 
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATIONS:  Staff recommends reimbursement of the April 2009 and May 
2009 expenses  subject to availability of funds.   
 



G.2.b



G.2.c (1 of 2)



G.2.c (2 of 2)



Kansas Racing and Gaming Commission 
 

STAFF AGENDA MEMORANDUM 
 

 
DATE OF MEETING: April 9, 2010 
 
AGENDA ITEM: Boot Hill Casino and Resort Internal Control Amendments 

and Related Financial Information. 
 
PRESENTER:  Charles LaBoy, Deputy Director for Audit and Electronic Security 
     
ISSUE SUMMARY:  Boot Hill Casino and Resort has submitted their February 2010 Financial 
Statements and the following amendments to their internal control plan. Due to the confidential 
nature of this information staff will discuss these items during the executive session.   

 

Waiver/Amendment #  Regulation/IC Reference  Staff Recommendation 

BH60 200.070.03    Approval 

BH62 700.070    Approval 
BH63 700.070    Approval 

BH64 140.070 & 160.060   Approval 

 

COMMISSION ACTION REQUIRED/REQUESTED:  Commission review, discussion and 
action. 

 
STAFF RECOMMENDATIONS:  Staff recommendations listed above. 

G.3.a



Kansas Racing and Gaming Commission 
 

STAFF AGENDA MEMORANDUM 
 
 
DATE OF MEETING: April 9, 2010 
 
AGENDA ITEM:  KRGC Compliance Audit of Anthony Downs for 2009 
 
PRESENTER:  Charles LaBoy, Director of Audit and Electronic Security 
 
ISSUE SUMMARY:  At the March 12, 2010 Commission meeting the Anthony Downs 2009 
compliance audit was presented by staff for approval.  The results of the audit noted there was 
$51,061 of profit that staff believed should be reclassified as a liability per the 2009 Commission 
order granting the parimutuel license to the Anthony Fair Association.     The Commission 
requested feedback from the licensee on this matter as there were no representatives from the 
licensee in attendance at the meeting.  As of the filing of the current agenda packet a written 
response has not been submitted but staff has discussed this issue with representatives of the 
Anthony Fair Association who have indicated they are working on a response. 
 
 
COMMISSION ACTION REQUIRED/REQUESTED:  Commission discussion, 
consideration and possible action on Anthony Down’s 2009 financial report. 
 
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATIONS:  No recommendation. 

G.4.a



G.4.b (1 of 3)



G.4.b (2 of 3)



G.4.b (3 of 3)



Kansas Racing and Gaming Commission 
 

STAFF AGENDA MEMORANDUM 
 

 
DATE OF MEETING: April 9, 2010 
 
AGENDA ITEM: Annual Audited Financial Statements of Wichita Greyhound 

Charities, Inc. for the year ended December 31, 2009. 
 
PRESENTER:  David Schultz,  KRGC Chief Audit Officer 
 
ISSUE SUMMARY:  Wichita Greyhound Charities has submitted copies of their 2009 audited 
financial statements to the Commission for our review.   

 
COMMISSION ACTION REQUIRED/REQUESTED:  Commission review and approval of 
the audited financial statements as submitted. 
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATIONS:  Staff recommends approval. 

 

 

 

G.5.a



G.5.b (1 of 8)



G.5.b (2 of 8)



G.5.b (3 of 8)



G.5.b (4 of 8)



G.5.b (5 of 8)



G.5.b (6 of 8)



G.5.b (7 of 8)



G.5.b (8 of 8)



G.5.c (1 of 5)



G.5.c (2 of 5)



G.5.c (3 of 5)



G.5.c (4 of 5)



G.5.c (5 of 5)



Kansas Racing and Gaming Commission 
 

STAFF AGENDA MEMORANDUM 
 

 
DATE OF MEETING: April 9, 2010 
 
AGENDA ITEM: Annual Audited Consolidated Financial Statements of Wichita 

Greyhound Park, Inc. and Subsidiary for the year ended 
December 31, 2009. 

 
PRESENTER:  David Schultz, KRGC Chief Audit Officer 
 
ISSUE SUMMARY:   Wichita Greyhound Park, Inc. has submitted copies of their 2009 
audited consolidated financial statements to the Commission for our review.   

 
COMMISSION ACTION REQUIRED/REQUESTED:  Commission review and approval of 
the audited financial statements as submitted.  
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATIONS:  Staff recommends approval. 

 

 

 

G.6.a



G.6.b (1 of 13)



G.6.b (2 of 13)



G.6.b (3 of 13)



G.6.b (4 of 13)



G.6.b (5 of 13)



G.6.b (6 of 13)



G.6.b (7 of 13)



G.6.b (8 of 13)



G.6.b (9 of 13)



G.6.b (10 of 13)



G.6.b (11 of 13)



G.6.b (12 of 13)



G.6.b (13 of 13)



G.6.c (1 of 5)



G.6.c (2 of 5)



G.6.c (3 of 5)



G.6.c (4 of 5)



G.6.c (5 of 5)



Kansas Racing and Gaming Commission 
 

STAFF AGENDA MEMORANDUM 
 

 
DATE OF MEETING: April 9, 2010 
 
AGENDA ITEM: Extension request on the annual audited financial statements 

of The Racing Association of Kansas East for the year ended 
December 31, 2009. 

 
PRESENTER:  Charles LaBoy, Director of Audit and Electronic Security 
 
ISSUE SUMMARY:  Kansas Racing, LLC has requested a 60 day extension for the submission 
of their 2009 audited financial statements. 

K.A.R. 112-3-15 states that the annual financial audit is due on or before 90 days after 
the license’s fiscal year end. 

  
COMMISSION ACTION REQUIRED/REQUESTED:  Commission review and 
consideration of the extension request. 
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATIONS:  No recommendation. 

 

 

 

G.7.a



G.7.b



Kansas Racing and Gaming Commission 
 

STAFF AGENDA MEMORANDUM 
 

 
DATE OF MEETING: April 9, 2010 
 
AGENDA ITEM: Extension request on the annual audited financial statements 

of Kansas Racing, LLC for the year ended December 31, 2009. 
 
PRESENTER:  Charles LaBoy, Director of Audit and Electronic Security 
 
ISSUE SUMMARY:  Kansas Racing, LLC has requested a 60 day extension for the submission 
of their 2009 audited financial statements. 

 K.A.R. 112-3-15 states that the annual financial audit is due on or before 90 days after 
the license’s fiscal year end. 

  
COMMISSION ACTION REQUIRED/REQUESTED:  Commission review and 
consideration of the extension request. 
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATIONS:  No recommendation. 

 

 

 

G.8.a



G.8.b



Kansas Racing and Gaming Commission 
 

STAFF AGENDA MEMORANDUM 
 

 
DATE OF MEETING: April 9, 2010 
 
AGENDA ITEM: Presentation of Annual Report for the year 2009 
 
PRESENTER:  Stephen Martino, Executive Director 
      
 
ISSUE SUMMARY:  Commission staff has developed the Annual Report for the calendar year 
2009. 

 
COMMISSION ACTION REQUIRED/REQUESTED:  Commission review and approval. 

 
STAFF RECOMMENDATIONS:  Staff recommends approval. 

 

 

 

G.9.a



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  

 

 

  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

                                   

  

Kansas 

Racing and Gaming Commission 

2009 Annual Report 

Stephen Martino 
Executive Director 



Kansas Racing and Gaming Commission Page 2 
 

 

 

  

The Kansas Racing and Gaming Commission 

Carol Sader (Chair) of Prairie Village moved to Kansas in 1976.  She was raised in Brooklyn, New 
York, graduated from Barnard College, Columbia University in 1957 with a major in Government.  She 
taught elementary school and later went on to attend law school in Chicago and Cincinnati where she 
became a legal editor.  In 1981, she became actively involved in public service when she was elected 
to the Board of Trustees of Johnson County Community College and served as Chair from 1984-1986.  
In 1986, she was elected to the Kansas Legislature as the State Representative for the 22nd 
Legislative District and served for eight years in the Kansas House.  In 1994, she unsuccessfully ran 
for Lt. Governor of Kansas.  Since 1995, she has continued her public service with appointments to 
the Kansas Commission on Judicial Qualifications and the Kansas State Board of Healing Arts.  Ms. 
Sader was appointed to the Kansas Racing and Gaming Commission in 2003 and has been serving as 
Chair of the Commission since 2005. 

Glenn Braun (Vice-Chair and Chief Hearing Officer) of Hays is a partner in Glassman, Bird, Braun & 
Schwartz, LLP where he has practiced law for the past 26 years.  He serves as the City of Hays 
prosecutor.  He is a graduate of Kansas State University and received his juris doctorate in 1981 from 
Washburn University School of Law.  He is a member of the Ellis County Bar Association.  He is the 
District 10 Governor for the KBA and has served on the Executive Committee.  He was twice selected 
for a position with the Kansas Court of Appeals.  He has been a public servant for numerous agencies 
including CASA, Big Brothers Big Sisters, St. John’s Rest Home Endowment Assoc., Thomas More 
Prep-Marian High School Council of Education, and Immaculate Heart of Mary.  As an adjunct 
professor at Fort Hays State, he has taught criminal law, criminal procedure and introduction to law.  
Mr. Braun was appointed to the Kansas Racing and Gaming Commission in 2005. 

William Falstad of Fredonia has been the president of Kansas Bank Note Co. since 1963.  KBNC is a 
printing company with customers throughout the United States, specializing in printed products for 
banks.  He holds a Business Administration degree from the University of Wisconsin.  After 
graduation, he worked in Chicago as a Certified Public Accountant for Arthur Anderson, 1956-1962, 
specializing in public utility audits, accounting systems and rate regulation.  His public service began 
in 1970 when he became the Mayor of Fredonia, 1970-1978.  He has also served on the Board of 
Directors of the National Printing Association, Fredonia Regional Hospital and First National Bank of 
Fredonia.  He has been a member of and has served on the Board for the Kansas Chamber of 
Commerce.  He has also served on the Kansas Performance Review Board and the Kansas Lottery 
Commission.  Mr. Falstad was appointed to the Kansas Racing and Gaming Commission in 2005. 

Barry Schwan of Wichita has been President of House of Schwan since 1985.  He graduated with a 
Bachelor of Science degree from the University of Colorado in 1975.  He has always taken an active 
role in business and community affairs.  He is the current President of the Kansas Sports Hall of 
Fame, founding member of the Greater Wichita Area Sports Commission, serves on the Boards of the 
Kansas Humane Society, and Sedgwick County Zoological Society and Foundation.  He has served on 
the Boards of Heartspring, National Beer Wholesalers Association, Wichita Chamber of Commerce, 
Wichita State University Foundation, Wichita Children’s Home, Crestview Country Club, Kansas Beer 
Wholesalers Association, Chamber Pro Sports Committee and the Wichita/Sedgwick County Alcohol 
and Drug Abuse Advisory Board.  Mr. Schwan was appointed to the Kansas Racing and Gaming 
Commission in 2007. 

Kristine McKechnie of Arcadia owns and operates Horse Creek Ranch Quarter Horses.  She 
graduated from the University of Kansas 1988 and from Kansas State University with her Masters of 
Public Administration degree in 1990.  She has served on a number of Boards and Commissions 
including Governor Bill Graves Early Childhood Care, Education and Health Subcommittee, Leadership 
Kansas Board of Trustees, City of Pittsburg Planning and Zoning Commission, Board of Zoning 
Appeals, 11th Judicial District Juvenile Corrections Advisory Board, and currently serves as Vice-Chair 
of the Kansas Mentors Council.  She co-owned and operated a weekly newspaper, the Girard Press, 
while serving as Director of Development at the Southeast Kansas Education Service Center.  While at 
Greenbush she directed the Community Resources Department and dedicated her time to help create 
a Kansas Mentoring Partnership.  Ms. McKechnie was appointed to the Kansas Racing and Gaming 
Commission in 2005. 



Annual Report 2009 Page 3 
 

 

 

  

Key Actions and Divisions  

  

Executive Director’s Report 4 

Legal Division 8 

Illegal Gambling 9 

Responsible Gambling 10 

Security Division 11 

Audit and Electronic Security Division 12 

Administration Division 13 

Revenues and Expenditures 14 

Organizational Chart 15 

  

  

Kansas Gaming  

  

Boot Hill Casino and Resort 16 

Hollywood Casino 17 

Tracks and Racing 
 

18 

  

 

  

Table of Contents 
 

 

 

 

 



Kansas Racing and Gaming Commission Page 4 
 

    

 

                                                                             
 
The Honorable Mark Parkinson 
Governor, State of Kansas 
Statehouse, Room 212-S 
Topeka, Kansas 66612-1590 
 
 
Dear Governor Parkinson, 
This is the 2009 Annual Report of the Kansas Racing 
and Gaming Commission (KRGC/commission). The 
report is a narrative and statistical summary of the 
KRGC’s regulatory responsibilities for calendar and 
fiscal year 2009. 
 
 

Commercial Tracks 

Parimutuel Racing 

No racing was conducted at any of the commercial tracks in calendar year 2009. 

On September 9, 2008, the KRGC sent a notice to cure to each of the racetracks 
and non-profit organizational licensees for their failure to run live horse and 
greyhound races. As a result of these notices, each licensee was subject to having 
its license revoked. On December 5, 2008, the KRGC issued an Administrative 
Order extending the licenses until 30 days after the Sine Die close of the 2009 
Kansas Legislative Session, or July 5, 2009.  

During the interim period, none of the tracks re-opened, none of the tracks began 
negotiating a contract with the Kansas Lottery to have electronic gaming machines 
at the tracks, and no race dates or re-opening plans were submitted to the KRGC.  
However, the tracks requested an extension of the deadline for all licensees until 
July 21, 2009. This extension was granted. 

At the Commission’s meeting during the Anthony Downs fair meet, individuals from 
across the state, including several state legislators, as well as their constituents 
spoke to the Commission, requesting another extension, until September 21, 2009, 
to give the licensees time to submit re-opening plans to the KRGC. This extension 
was also granted. 

Executive Director’s Report 
 

Stephen Martino 
Executive Director 



Annual Report 2009 Page 5 
 

As of September 21, 2009, the Commission had received re-opening plans from 
each of the three parimutuel tracks, contingent on Legislative changes during the 
2010 Kansas Legislative Session to make parimutuel racing more profitable in the 
state of Kansas.  The new deadline for license revocation is 30 days after the Sine 
Die of the 2010 Legislative Session.  

Fair Meets 

K.S.A. 74-8813 and 74-8814 give the KRGC the authority to regulate fair meets in 
the state. In 2009, two fair meets were held, one at Anthony Downs and one at 
Eureka Downs.  In 2009, the Eureka meet was held for ten days, beginning May 25 
and 30, and continuing June 6, 13, 14, 20, 21, 27, 28 and July 4, with post times 
for all live race days at 1:30 p.m. The Anthony meet was held for six days – July 
10, 11, 12, 17, 18, and 19 with post times at 5:30 p.m. on Fridays and 2:00 p.m. 
on Saturdays and Sundays.  

 

In 2007, the Kansas Legislature passed the Kansas Expanded Lottery Act, 
establishing four commercial casino licenses in four gaming zones. The act gave the 
Kansas Racing and Gaming Commission the responsibility for regulating the 
operation of expanded lottery gaming facilities in Kansas. 

Expanded Gaming 

Review Board Activities 

The Kansas Lottery Gaming Facility Review Board (Review Board) was organized 
under K.S.A. 74-8735. Under this section, the Review Board was placed within the 
Kansas Racing and Gaming Commission for staffing purposes. 

The Review Board is comprised of seven members. The current membership is as 
follows: 

Matt All, Chairman    Lawrence 

Jim Bergfalk    Mission 

Bob Boaldin    Elkhart 

Garry Boston   Newton 

Jack Brier     Topeka 

Dean Ferrell     Topeka 

Dr. Jackie Vietti    El Dorado 



Kansas Racing and Gaming Commission Page 6 
 

As in 2008, the purpose of the Review Board is to review the applications forwarded 
from the Lottery Commission to determine the “best possible contract” in each 
gaming zone.  

In 2009, the Review Board received contracts in the Northeast and South Central 
zones. Initially, the Lottery Commission approved two contracts in the Northeast 
zone – one by Penn National Gaming and a separate contract from Kansas 
Entertainment. However, prior to the in-zone meeting, Penn National Gaming joined 
the Kansas Entertainment application, taking the place of the Cordish Company. 

In determining the best possible contract, the Review Board held five live meetings 
and two teleconferences, all of which were public meetings. The live meetings took 
place in three cities (Kansas City, Wellington and Topeka) from April 24, 2009, until 
December 1, 2009. 

During the course of the Review Board’s work, the Board retained a team of 
consultants to assist the Board in evaluating the contracts. These consultants 
possessed expertise in areas such as gaming revenue projections, financial stability, 
fiscal impact analysis and ancillary development and construction cost analysis. The 
Board retained Dr. William Eadington as a general consultant as well as Will 
Cummings and Richard Wells to provide gaming revenue projections and gaming 
market studies.  Meridian Business Advisors was once again hired to perform a 
fiscal impact analysis for the local governments. Civic Economics was once again 
retained to determine what the cannibalization effects of the new facilities would be 
on existing businesses in the community. In addition, the Board retained several 
new consultants. Union Gaming Group was hired to examine the financial 
sustainability of the manager applicants. Raving Consulting was retained to analyze 
the ancillary development of the management applications. Finally Construction 
Cost Systems was hired to perform a construction cost analysis of the applicants’ 
proposals. 

KRGC staff hosted, staffed and planned all Review Board meetings, as well as 
compiling all information that the Review Board requested during the process. In 
addition, KRGC staff processed all incoming correspondence for the Review Board 
and maintained (and continues to maintain) all records of Review Board activities. 

On December 1, 2009, the Review Board voted 7-0 in favor of the Kansas 
Entertainment contract as the “best possible contract” in the Northeast zone. That 
contract was subsequently forwarded to the KRGC for the Commission to perform 
background investigations on the applicant and its key employees. 

The Board, however, was not able to find that the Chisholm Creek contract was the 
“best possible contract” in the South Central zone and, as a result, sent the 
Chisholm Creek contract back to the Lottery Commission for renegotiation, 



Annual Report 2009 Page 7 
 

consistent with K.S.A. 74-8736(d)(2). Those negotiations were still pending at the 
close of the calendar year. 

The Review Board is once again dormant and will remain as such until the Lottery 
Commission agrees to a contract with the Chisholm Creek group, re-opens bidding 
in the South Central zone, or until a new bidder emerges in the Southeast zone. 

Casino Regulation 

The Boot Hill Casino and Resort was scheduled to open in December 2009, 
consistent with its contract with the Kansas Lottery Commission. In preparation for 
this opening, KRGC staff:  

• tested and approved the central computer system, as well as 1,089 
electronic gaming machines and their related software, 

• required two controlled demonstrations to ensure regulatory compliance, 
during which a 421 point audit checklist was verified, 

• reviewed 337 temporary license applications, approving 302 and denying 35, 
• reviewed 23 permanent license applications, approving 18 and denying 5, 
• distributed responsible gaming materials in the Ford County area, and 
• oversaw responsible gaming training for all casino employees. 

 

The Boot Hill Casino and Resort opened to the public December 15, 2009. The 
KRGC has a licensed law enforcement officer on site at the facility whenever the 
facility is open to the public. 

In addition, the KRGC oversaw the development of gaming regulations. In total, 
243 gaming regulations were heard and enacted during the 2009 calendar year. 
 
 
Respectfully Submitted, 

 

Stephen Martino 
Executive Director  



Kansas Racing and Gaming Commission Page 8 
 

         
  

 

The KRGC is statutorily assigned two assistant 
attorney generals “to assist it in all matters.”  These 
two attorneys, along with a legal assistant, comprise 
the Legal Division.  The work of the Legal Division 
can generally be divided into three areas:  
administrative, criminal and civil.  Administratively,  
the KRGC’s attorneys research and prepare parimutuel 
and gaming regulations and also prosecute violations of those regulations in 
administrative hearings.   
 

Because the KRGC is also a law enforcement agency, the KRGC’s attorneys assist in 
criminal matters.  Specifically, attorneys coordinate the KRGC’s response to 
complaints and information related to illegal gaming issues and act as counsel for 
the agency’s enforcement agents when necessary.   

 

On civil issues, the KRGC’s attorneys assume both litigation and transactional roles 
– that is, the attorneys prepare contracts and represent the agency in law suits.  
The attorneys also act as in-house counsel providing research, analysis and 
communication necessary to either represent the agency or resolve any legal issues 
it has. 

  

Legal Division 
 

Patrick Martin 
Asst. Attorney General/ 

Chief Counsel 



Annual Report 2009 Page 9 
 

 

 

 

Beginning in 2007 with the passage of the Kansas Expanded Lottery Act, the KRGC 
was designated the coordinating agency for all illegal gambling complaints. Since 
that time, the KRGC has received over 500 complaints and calls regarding illegal 
gaming. 

 

To maximize the limited resources of all law enforcement and other state and local 
agencies regarding illegal gambling, the KRGC has worked with local law 
enforcement and prosecutors throughout the state to educate the public and gain 
compliance with state law regarding illegal gambling devices. The KRGC oversaw 
the destruction of 61 quarter pusher devices during calendar year 2009 as part of 
its illegal gaming education and enforcement program. 

 

The KRGC also assisted the Attorney General’s Office in the successful closing and 
litigation of the illegal “Kandu” poker game in Wichita. 

In addition to this, the KRGC has continued to pursue illegal gaming enforcement 
up through the supplier level to prevent illegal gaming devices from being brought 
into the state. 

 

 

Illegal Gambling 
 



Kansas Racing and Gaming Commission Page 10 
 

            
          

 

Together with the Kansas Responsible Gambling 
Alliance, the KRGC developed a new problem gambling 
website www.ksgamblinghelp.com. In addition to the 
website, the Alliance and the KRGC have endorsed and 
aggressively marketed the national Problem Gambling  
Helpline, 800-522-4700.  
 

The KRGC worked closely with the Boot Hill Casino & Resort to ensure the facility 
appropriately addressed the dangers of problem gambling.  In addition to signage 
in many parts of the facility, the KRGC was also able to have the problem gambling 
helpline and website advertised directly on the slot machines, as well as on 
billboards around the area. 

 

The KRGC coordinated training for gambling counselors in the Dodge City area to 
assist them with identifying problems encountered by clients, as well as overseeing 
training for casino employees to identify early warning signs of potential problem 
gambling behavior. 

 

In 2009, the KRGC kicked off the statewide Voluntary Exclusion Program. The 
program allows anyone who thinks they might have a gambling problem to exclude 
themselves from the state-owned casinos. Persons have an option of excluding 
themselves for a term of two years or for life. Those who choose the two year 
option must complete a series of healthy choices classes and undergo an 
assessment from a certified problem gambling counselor before the commission will 
consider taking them off the list.  

  

Responsible Gambling 
 

Mike Deines 
Director 

Communications/Responsible Gambling 

http://www.ksgamblinghelp.com/�


Annual Report 2009 Page 11 
 

 

 

 

Security personnel are vested with the power and 
authority of law enforcement officers in the execution of 
the duties vested in the Commission by provisions of the 
Parimutuel Racing Act and the Expanded Lottery Act. The  
division’s goals are: 
 

• to ensure the integrity of racing and gaming in Kansas, 
• to ensure racing and gaming sites are a safe entertainment venue for 

patrons and employees, 
• to be proactive and responsive to racing and gaming laws and 

regulations, and   
• to protect the interests of the public and the State as they relate to racing 

and gaming. 
 

Security personnel work toward these goals by monitoring activities in the racing 
and gaming properties, and investigating criminal and regulatory violations of the 
acts.  They serve as the on-site regulatory staff for the Kansas Racing and Gaming 
Commission (KRGC) to ensure operations comply with Kansas law and Commission 
regulations. 

Security personnel also conduct background investigations of KRGC employees, 
management companies, racing and gaming facility employees, and vendors.  
Backgrounds are conducted to protect the public interest by maintaining a 
legitimate and viable gaming industry assuring honesty, good character and 
integrity of racing and gaming facility operators, employees, and vendors. 

BACKGROUND INVESTIGATIONS  
          Backgrounds Completed 207 
          Backgrounds in Process  
                    Corporate 32 
                    Corporate Employees  324 
                    Boot Hill Casino and Resort 346 
LICENSES  
          Parimutuel Licenses Issued  
                    Eureka Downs 410 
                    Anthony Downs 167 
          Gaming Licenses Issued  
                    Corporate 28 
                    Corporate Employees 140 
          Boot Hill Casino and Resort Employee Licenses Issued  
                    Commission Approved 18 
                              Denied 5 
                    Temporary 302 
                              Denied 35 

 

Security and Licensing Division 
 

Don Brownlee 
Deputy Director 

Security and Licensing 



Kansas Racing and Gaming Commission Page 12 
 

         

 

 

The Audit and Electronic Security Division is comprised 
of two sub-units, the audit unit and electronic security 
unit, each containing their own unique duties and 
functions.  Both work to accomplish the goals of 
ensuring that the parimutuel and expanded gaming  
industries are held to the highest accounting and  
internal control standards and that the electronic systems used in those industries 
are accurate, secure and reliable.   
 

The Division is comprised of experts in their fields such as certified public 
accountants and certified information system security professionals who work 
diligently to ensure the commission has the best information available to make 
appropriate regulatory decisions.  Services provided by the department include 
financial and compliance audits, certification of electronic gaming devices, 
information system security audits and consultation to the commission and the 
parimutuel and gaming industries in Kansas. 

 

In 2009, the Audit and Electronic Security division tested and approved the central 
computer system, as well as 1,089 electronic gaming machines and their related 
software. 

 

  

Audit and Electronic  
Security Division 
 

Charles LaBoy 
Deputy Director 

Audit and Electronic Security 



Annual Report 2009 Page 13 
 

                 

 

 

The Administration Division provides support services for the 
entire agency.  These services include accounting, purchasing, 
budgeting, human resources, information technology and 
records management.  The Division is also responsible for 
managing space and facilities, travel coordination, legislative  
tracking and fiscal note responses, the creation and  
management of formal agency policies, and the production of agency forms. 
 

In 2009, the Division was responsible for the implementation of the agency’s new 
gaming regulatory system.  The system, acquired through a contract with IDPoint, 
Ltd., is a fully integrated regulatory software system that has been operating in 
other jurisdictions for over 10 years.  The IDPoint system is a comprehensive 
regulatory system that allows the following to be performed on one system: 

• processing gaming licenses and ID card issuance, 
• electronic fingerprint processing, 
• electronic document storage and management, 
• gaming machine hardware and software inventory tracking, and 
• electronic incident reporting and security logs. 

 

In 2009, the Division was responsible for implementing and managing the agency’s 
lay-off plan.  Because of delays in the implementation of the Kansas Expanded 
Lottery Act, the KRGC had to make the difficult decision of laying off 11 classified 
employees, three unclassified employees, and a reduction to part-time status for 
another nine agency employees.  The lay-offs resulted in a savings of more than 
$460,000 for the year.  At year’s end, all part-time reductions had been restored to 
full-time status, and due to the increased workloads associated with the opening of 
Boot Hill Casino and Resort and the selection of the Hollywood Casino at the Kansas 
Speedway, the KRGC was able to hire back four of the employees that were laid off.  

  

Administration Division 
 

Don Cawby 
Deputy Director 
Administration 



Kansas Racing and Gaming Commission Page 14 
 

 

  

 

REVENUES  FY 2008  FY 2009 
     
RACING     
Parimutuel Tax $ 1,946,409         $ 261,757 
Admissions Tax  1,270  2,601 
Unclaimed Winning Tickets  409,027  188,273 
Breakage  144,227  29,337 
License Fees & Fines  142,419  15,276 
Operating Reimbursements  548,458  169,133 
Fingerprint Fees  26,067  850 
Transfers  47,442  (47,847) 
Miscellaneous  69,785  (61,844) 
     Subtotal - Revenues  3,335,104  557,537 
     
     
GAMING     
Loan Proceeds $ 2,632,000 $ 2,368,000 
Review Board Charges  1,650,000  0 
Background Reimbursements  0  785,536 
Transfers  0  (35,424) 
     Subtotal – Revenues  4,282,000  3,118,112 
     
TOTAL REVENUES $ 7,617,104 $ 3,675,649 
     
     

EXPENDITURES  FY 2008  FY 2009 
     
RACING     
Grants for Fair Meets $ 442,739 $ 131,579 
Racing Operations  2,100,642  898,549 
Breed Supplements  585,595  277,055 
Research Grants  0  0 
     Subtotal – Expenditures  3,128,976  1,307,183 
     
     
GAMING     
Gaming Operations $ 2,338,321 $ 2,096,844 
Review Board Expenses  378,589  1,282,664 
Research Grants  0  0 
     Subtotal – Expenditures   2,716,910  3,379,508 
     
TOTAL EXPENDITURES $ 5,845,886 $ 4,686,691 

 

     
REVENUES AND EXPENDITURES  FY2008  FY2009 
     
TOTAL REVENUES $ 7,617,104 $ 3,675,649 
TOTAL EXPENDITURES $ 5,845,886 $ 4,686,691 

  

Revenue and Expenditures 
 



Annual Report 2009 Page 15 
 

 

 

 

 

 

Executive Director

Stephen Martino

Legal  Division

Chief Counsel/ 

Asst. Attorney General

Patrick Martin

Legal Assistant

Cheryl Dolejsi

Administration 
Division

Deputy Director

Don Cawby

Chief Fiscal Officer

Neysa Thomas

Accountant I

Monique Strong

Human Resources

Manager

Brenda Kelly

Lottery Review Board

Liaison

Jay Hall

Information 
Technology

Application Developer

Steve Mumert

Information 
Technology

Support Consultant

Shaun Glaubitz

Senior Administrative 
Assistant

Connie Garrison

Audit and Electronic 
Security Division

Deputy Director

Charles LaBoy

Chief Audit Officer

David Schultz

Internal Controls 
Auditor

Brandi Baer

Chief Electronic 
Gaming Inspector

Bill Smith

Security Division

Deputy Director

Don Brownlee

Enforcement Agent

Dodge City Division

Dennis Bachman

Colby Ellis

Rick Langdon

Jamie Reynolds

Kent Schoen

Todd Wasinger

Joe York

Regional Security 
Manager

Larry Moreland

Enforcement Agent

Topeka Division

Darin Altenburg

John Hinman

Kayla Loomis

DJ Lopez

Jim Root

Financial Investigator

Todd Allen

Andy Burlingham

Licensing Manager

Donna Coulter

Communications/

Responsible Gambling

Director

Mike Deines

Responsible Gambling 
Program Coordinator

Carol Spiker

Executive Secretary

Linda Pendarvis

Organizational Chart 
 



Kansas Racing and Gaming Commission Page 16 
 

 

 

 

Boot Hill Casino and Resort is located at 4000 West Comanche in Dodge City.  The 
casino opened to the public December 15, 2009.  It houses 585 slot machines, 13 
table games and 2 restaurants.  The revenue figures represent total dollars from 
December 15-31, 2009. 

 

                                  

 

 

1,706,096.26

283,896.50

Boot Hill Casino and Resort
December 2009 Revenue*

EGMs Table Games

39,799.86 59,699.78

437,798.41

1,452,694.71

Gaming Revenue Report

2% Problem Gambling Share 3% Local Share 22% State Share 73% Casino Share

Boot Hill Casino and Resort 
 

(*as reported by the Kansas Lottery’s central computer system) 



Annual Report 2009 Page 17 
 

 

 

 

Hollywood Casino at the Kansas Speedway is located at 400 Speedway Boulevard in 
Kansas City.  It will be located just off the second turn of the speedway.  The casino 
will house 2,300 slot machines, 86 table games, three restaurants and one coffee 
shop.  It is expected to open late 2011 or early 2012. 

  

Hollywood Casino 
 



Kansas Racing and Gaming Commission Page 18 
 

 

 

 

The Woodlands 

The Woodlands racetrack in Kansas City features both a horse track and a 
greyhound track.  No racing has been held at the Woodlands since August 23, 
2008.  As a result, the Woodlands’ parimutuel license is currently subject to 
revocation. 

Wichita Greyhound Park 

Wichita Greyhound Park in Valley Center features a greyhound track.  No racing has 
been held at Wichita Greyhound Park since October 6, 2007.  As a result, Wichita 
Greyhound Park’s parimutuel license is subject to revocation. 

Camptown Greyhound Park 

Camptown Greyhound Park in Frontenac features a greyhound track.  No racing has 
been held at Camptown since November 13, 2000.  As a result, Camptown’s 
parimutuel license is currently subject to revocation. 

 

Fair Meets 

Eureka Downs (10-Day Meet)   
          Handle $ 272,745 
          Purses  19,738 
          Attendance  4,782 
          Parimutuel Tax  9,869 
   
Anthony Downs (6-Day Meet)   
          Handle $  
                    Horse  366,891 
                    Greyhound  35,149 
          Purse   
                    Horse  13,268 
                    Greyhound  1,745 
          Attendance  2,966 
          Parimutuel Tax   
                    Horse  6,634 
                    Greyhound  1,309 
 

  

Tracks and Racing 
 



Annual Report 2009 Page 19 
 



Kansas Racing and Gaming Commission Page 20 
 

 

  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  

 
Kansas Racing and Gaming Commission 

  
700 SW Harrison 

Suite 500 
Topeka, KS   66603-3754 

785.296.5800 
 

http://www.krgc.ks.gov 

http://www.krgc.ks.gov/�


APRIL
9 Commission Meeting (rescheduled from April 16)

MAY
14 Commission Meeting

JUNE
3 Commission Meeting (rescheduled from June 11)

JULY
16 Commission Meeting

AUGUST
13 Commission Meeting

SEPTEMBER
10 Commission Meeting (rescheduled from September 17)

OCTOBER
13 Commission Meeting

NOVEMBER
12 Commission Meeting

DECEMBER
17 Commission Meeting

April 2010 - March  2011

Kansas Racing and Gaming Commission Planner

May 2010
S M T W T F S

1
2 3 4 5 6 7 8
9 10 11 12 13 14 15
16 17 18 19 20 21 22
23 24 25 26 27 28 29
30 31

Jul 2010
S M T W T F S

1 2 3
4 5 6 7 8 9 10
11 12 13 14 15 16 17
18 19 20 21 22 23 24
25 26 27 28 29 30 31

Aug 2010
S M T W T F S
1 2 3 4 5 6 7
8 9 10 11 12 13 14
15 16 17 18 19 20 21
22 23 24 25 26 27 28
29 30 31

Sep 2010
S M T W T F S

1 2 3 4
5 6 7 8 9 10 11
12 13 14 15 16 17 18
19 20 21 22 23 24 25
26 27 28 29 30

Oct 2010
S M T W T F S

1 2
3 4 5 6 7 8 9
10 11 12 13 14 15 16
17 18 19 20 21 22 23
24 25 26 27 28 29 30
31

Nov 2010
S M T W T F S

1 2 3 4 5 6
7 8 9 10 11 12 13
14 15 16 17 18 19 20
21 22 23 24 25 26 27
28 29 30

Dec 2010
S M T W T F S

1 2 3 4
5 6 7 8 9 10 11
12 13 14 15 16 17 18
19 20 21 22 23 24 25
26 27 28 29 30 31

Jan 2011
S M T W T F S

1
2 3 4 5 6 7 8
9 10 11 12 13 14 15
16 17 18 19 20 21 22
23 24 25 26 27 28 29
30 31

Feb 2011
S M T W T F S

1 2 3 4 5
6 7 8 9 10 11 12
13 14 15 16 17 18 19
20 21 22 23 24 25 26
27 28

Mar 2011
S M T W T F S

1 2 3 4 5
6 7 8 9 10 11 12
13 14 15 16 17 18 19
20 21 22 23 24 25 26
27 28 29 30 31

Apr 2010
S M T W T F S

1 2 3
4 5 6 7 8 9 10
11 12 13 14 15 16 17
18 19 20 21 22 23 24
25 26 27 28 29 30

Jun 2010
S M T W T F S

1 2 3 4 5
6 7 8 9 10 11 12
13 14 15 16 17 18 19
20 21 22 23 24 25 26
27 28 29 30

I.3.a 


	2010-04-09 Agenda
	page 2
	page 3
	page 4

	C.   APPROVAL OF MINUTES 
	C.1  2010-03-12 Commission Minutes - DRAFT

	D.  CONSENT AGENDA 
	D.1  EGM and Electronic Game Approvals
	D.1.a  SAM EGM Approval  040910
	D.1.b  EGM Approvals 040910


	F.  GAMING FACILITY REPORTS/ITEMS 
	F.1  Boot Hill Casino & Resort (BHCR)
	F.1.a  March 2010 Gaming Revenue Report

	F.2  Hollywood Casino at KS Speedway

	G.  COMMISSION ITEMS
	G.1  Semi-annual Bingo Report
	G.1.a  ABC Bingo Report 2nd half 2009

	G.2  Kansas Bred Program Reimbursement
	G.2.a  Staff Memo
	G.2.b  KHA Letter
	G.2.c  Ks Bred Registry Income and Cash Flow

	G.3  BHCR Internal Control Amendments
	G.3.a  Staff Memo - Amended

	G.4  2009 Anthony Downs Audit
	G.4.a  Staff Memo
	G.4.b  Anthony Audit Response

	G.5  2009 Wichita Greyhound Charities Audit 
	G.5.a  Staff Memo
	G.5.b  WGC 2009 Audited F S
	G.5.c  WGCI 2009 Audit Letter

	G.6  2009 WGP Audit
	G.6.a  Staff Memo
	G.6.b  WGP 2009 Audited F S
	G.6.c  WGP 2009 Audit Letter

	G.7  2009 TRAK-East Audit
	G.7.a  Staff Memo
	G.7.b  2009 Audit Extension Request

	G.8  2009 Kansas Racing, LLC Audit
	G.8.a  Staff Memo
	G.8.b  2009 Audit Extension Request

	G.9  2009 KRGC Annual Report 
	G.9.a  Staff Memo 
	G.9.b  2009 KRGC Annual Report


	I.  STAFF REPORTS
	I.1  Executive Director
	I.2  Director of Comm./Resp. Gaming
	I.3  Deputy Director of Administration
	I.3.a  Commission Calendar





